
Agenda Item 
 

 

 June 5, 2019 
 
TO: City Council 
 
FROM: Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
SUBJECT: Committee Appointments 
 
 
The following appointments are made, subject to the approval of the Council.  
Please forward any adverse comments to me prior to the Council meeting on 
Monday, June 10, 2019.  No reply is required if you approve of my decision.   
 
Woodburn Public Library Board 
 
Katrina Charfauros 
Cynthia Branger Munoz 
 
 

1



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MAY 13, 2019 

Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, May 13, 2019 

  
 DATE  WOODBURN POLICE DEPARTMENT, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY 

OF MARION, STATE OF OREGON, MAY 13, 2019 
 

CONVENED   The meeting convened at 6:51 p.m. with Mayor Swenson presiding. 
 

 ROLL CALL 
Mayor Swenson Present  
Councilor Carney Present 
Councilor Cornwell Present 
Councilor Schaub Present 
Councilor Morris Present 
Councilor Ellsworth Present 
 
Staff Present: Assistant City Administrator Row, Assistant City Attorney Granum, Public 
Works Director Liljequist, Police Chief Ferraris, Community Development Director Kerr, 
Economic Development Director Johnk, Economic Development Assistant Guerrero, City 
Recorder Pierson 
 

 ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 The City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, May 27, has been cancelled in observance 

of Memorial Day. 
 
 City Hall, the Library and the Transit System will be closed Monday, May 27, in observance 

of Memorial Day.  The Aquatic Center will be open from 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
   
 Mayor Swenson announced that the June 10, City Council meeting will take place at the high 

school. 
 
 APPOINTMENTS 
 Carney/Ellsworth… appoint Debbie Cabrales as City Councilor for Ward 1. The motion 

passed unanimously. City Recorder Pierson provided the Oath of Office to Debbie Cabrales.  
 Councilor Cabrales took her seat with the City Council.  
 
 WORK SESSION WITH WOODBURN PLANNING COMMISSION 
 Transportation System Plan (TSP) - Matt Hughart, with Kittelson and Associates provided 

an update of the TSP and provided the next steps for the project.  He also reviewed the goals 
of the project and pointed out some of the highlights.  

 
 Mayor Swenson called for a five-minute recess.  
 
 CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Woodburn City Council minutes of April 22, 2019, 
B. Building Activity for April 2019. 
Ellsworth/Schaub… adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion passed unanimously. 

  
 STAFF BRIEFING ON RECOMMENDED LEGISLATIVE CODE AMENDMENTS 

RELATED TO MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING IN THE COMMERCIAL GENERAL 
(CG) ZONING DISTRICT (LA 2019-01)  

 Community Development Director Kerr provided a staff report. He noted that these 

2



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MAY 13, 2019 

Page 2 - Council Meeting Minutes, May 13, 2019 

amendments will be coming to the Planning Commission on May 23 and a recommendation 
from the Planning Commission will be coming to the City Council on June 10.  No action was 
taken by the City Council.  

 
 AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT PLANT DIGESTER CLEANING & MIXER UPGRADE PROJECT 
(GOAL 5) 

 Public Works Director Liljequist provided a staff report. Carney/Ellsworth… award the 
construction contract for the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Digester Cleaning & 
Mixer Upgrade Project to the lowest responsible bidder, Stettler Supply Company, in the 
amount of $552,200. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 2019 SPRING PAVEMENT 
 MAINTENANCE  PROJECT  
 Public Works Director Liljequist provided a staff report. Carney/Schaub…award the 

construction contract for the 2019 Spring Pavement Maintenance Project to the lowest 
responsible bidder, Knife River Corporation - Northwest in the amount of $518,888.45 and 
authorize an additional $175,000.00 for this project as a contingency for potential project 
change orders for additional pavement maintenance activities that add components or phases 
of work specified in or reasonably implied from the Solicitation Document. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
FUND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT – FIRST STREET IMPROVEMENTS, 
HARDCASTLE AVENUE REALIGNMENT @ RAILROAD, AND W. HAYES 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS, MISC. CONTRACTS AND 
AGREEMENTS NO. 33397, NO. 33398 & NO. 33399 (GOAL 4, 5)  

 Public Works Director Liljequist provided a staff report. Carney/Schaub… authorize the City 
Administrator to execute three Intergovernmental Agreements between the State of Oregon 
and the City of Woodburn pertaining to Fund Exchange Agreements for the First Street 
Improvements Project (MC&A No. 33397), The Hardcastle Avenue Realignment @ Railroad 
Project (MC&A No. 33398), and the West Hayes Street Improvements Project (MC&A No. 
33399). The motion passed unanimously. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS 
(GOAL 4, 7) 
Police Chief Ferraris provided a staff report. Carney/Morris… authorize the City 
Administrator to sign an agreement with Woodburn School District for School Resource 
Officer services. The motion passed unanimously. 

  
PLANNING COMMISSION OR ADMINISTRATIVE LAND USE ACTIONS 

 Call-Up Briefing:  Public Arts and Mural Committee Approval of a Mural to be Located at 
1750 Park Avenue (Colonia Unidad) (Goal 3) 

 
 The City Council declined to call this item up. 

 
 

3



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MAY 13, 2019 

Page 3 - Council Meeting Minutes, May 13, 2019 

 
 CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 Assistant City Administrator Row reported the following: 
  

• The City Hall project is on schedule and on budget. We are looking at a mid-July 
completion date and late July to move back to City Hall.  

 
• The Pix Project is moving along. Last week the contractor discovered an underground 

fuel tank that will need to be removed and testing of the soil would need to be done. 
A boiler they were unaware of was also found boarded up in the building.  

 
• The Museum project kicked off last week and should be completed this summer.  

 
• The City was officially notified that they received the $200,000 grant for the historic 

city hall property.   
 

• The Hardcastle realignment project should begin in early July and finish up in October. 
The timing really depends on the railroads schedule.  

 
• There is an open house tonight on the housing needs analysis at Success High School. 

This report will go to the Planning Commission and then to City Council and adopted 
into the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
• The Police Department will be kicking off their good neighbor program. On June 1, 

June 8, and June 15, Code Enforcement Officers will be working with residents who 
may be in violation of certain codes and will answer questions on the various codes. 

 
• The new Pizza Hut is complete and opened last week.  

 
MAYOR SWENSON’S SISTER CITY PROPOSAL (GOAL 3,5) 
Mayor Swenson provided information on the Sister City program. He stated that he would 
bring back more information at a future meeting for the Council to review.   

 
 MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
 Mayor Swenson stated that he was shadowed last week by Lincoln, a high school student who 

will be attending Notre Dame next year. He was asked to introduce the Mexican Consulate at 
Cinco de Mayo.  He added that he went to a presentation on housing along with other Mayor’s. 
He stated that he attended and spoke at the employee lunch and was very impressed with it.  
He noted that he will be attending a meeting with PGE along with Council President Carney 
and Councilor Schaub.  He also announced that Taste of Woodburn is June 1 and 2.  

  
 Councilor Schaub thanked Bill, a resident of Senior Estates, for planting and watering flowers 

at the Senior Estates Park.  She added that other members have volunteered to keep the park 
nice and she thanks them as well.  

 
 Councilor Ellsworth announced that the Relay for Life Do it Best garage sale will take place 

4



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MAY 13, 2019 

Page 4 - Council Meeting Minutes, May 13, 2019 

June 8 in the Do it Best warehouse parking lot.   
 
 Councilor Cornwell stated that there is a lot of crime stopping issues she is dealing with in her 

neighborhood.  
 
 Councilor Carney thanked the economic development team for getting that grant.  
 
 Mayor Swenson noted that the June 10 meeting will be taking place at Woodburn High 

School.  
  
 ADJOURNMENT 

Ellsworth/Morris… meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
The meeting adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 

 
 
APPROVED                                                            
                      ERIC SWENSON, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST                                                                               
               Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 

5



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance ___x__ 

 June 10, 2019 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
THRU: James C. Ferraris, Chief of Police 
   
FROM: Andy Shadrin, Lieutenant 
 
SUBJECT: Liquor License Application  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Woodburn City Council recommend that the OLCC approve the Liquor 
License Application for J&B Liquidators Inc. (Wheeler Dealer). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Applicant: J&B Liquidators, Inc  
  862 Cummings Lane N 
  Keizer, OR 97303 
  503-390-5756 
   
Point of  
Contact:  Tina Lottis 
  862 Cummings Lane N 
  Keizer, OR 97303 
  503-390-5756 
   
Business: Wheeler Dealer 
  1750 Mt. Jefferson Ave. 
  Woodburn, OR 97071  
  503-982-5553 
 
Owners: Robert Davis, Patricia Davis, John Lottis, and Tina Lottis   
 

6



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
License Type:  Off-Premises Sales - Permits beer, wine, and cider sales in factory 
sealed containers along with beer, wine and cider sales in “growlers” for 
consumption off the licensed premises.     
 
On April 30, 2019, the Woodburn Police Department received an application for 
Off-Premises sales liquor license for J & B Liquidators Inc. (Wheeler Dealer).  The 
business currently operates as a discount and overstock/liquidation store that 
carries a variety of products that include:  groceries, gifts, housewares, apparel, 
home and garden supplies, toys and tools.  The business will have the ability to 
sell beer, wine, cider in factory sealed containers and in “growlers” for 
consumption off the licensed premises.  The business will not have any 
entertainment, additional seating or other improvements in relation to this 
license.  Wheeler Dealer is located at 1750 Mt. Jefferson Ave., Woodburn, 
Oregon 97071.  The hours of operation are from 8:00 AM to 9:00 PM Sunday 
through Saturday.  The Woodburn Police Department has not received any 
communication from the public or surrounding businesses in support of or 
against the proposed change. 
   
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Police Department has completed a background investigation on the 
subjects listed on the OLCC application.  John Lottis, Patricia Davis and Tina 
Lottis were clear in all database checks with no criminal records.   
 
Robert Davis had two prior arrests from 1980 and 1981.  These arrests were not 
indicated on the OLCC Individual History Form, due to the fact they were not 
required to be disclosed since they occurred longer than 10 years ago and did 
not fit the criteria for disclosure.  (See questions 14 and 15, of OLCC Individual 
History Form for additional details)   
 
The arrests were discovered after the Police Department conducted a 
background check on Robert Davis.  The arrests were for DUII (1980) and 
carrying a concealed knife (1981).  The arrests were in Klamath Falls, Oregon 
and both cases were satisfied with either community service or forfeiture of the 
weapon.   
 
No other arrest or negative law enforcement contact was noted in Robert 
Davis’ background aside from being a complainant or witness in a series of 
shoplifts while presumably working at the Albany Albertson’s store between 1995 
through 1997, as a complainant of a fraud at the Keizer Waremart in 2010, as a 
witness in a shoplift at the Albany J&B Liquidators in 2016, as a complainant of a 

7



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
burglary in 2010 and a theft in 2019 at the Woodburn Wheeler Dealer.  Since 
Robert Davis’ two arrests over 38 years ago, no other information was 
discovered during the background check that indicated that Robert Davis had 
any additional negative law enforcement contact.     
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

8



5/14/2019 Woodburn Police Department
MONTHLY ARRESTS BY OFFENSES 

2019 Year to Date

2
0
6
0

10
0
0
1
2
1
9
0
3
5
9
1
0
0
1
3
2
1
0
0
0

45
0
1
0
6
2
1
1
0
1
7
1
2
1
1
1
2
2
1
0
1
1
0
0
1
4
5
0
2

1
0
1
2
9
0
0
0
1
0
6
0

10
6
6
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

26
0
0
0
2
0
2
0
0
1
2
4
2
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
1
0
1
1
1
8

1
0
4
0
1
0
1
3
1
0
8
0
3
8

13
1
2
2
0
0
3
3
1
0
0

37
1
0
1
3
1
1
0
5
0
5
3
2
0
1
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
0
0
3
0
0
7

3
1
0
0
9
1
0
0
4
1
5
2
5
5

16
2
0
0
0
2
1
0
0
1
1

37
0
0
0
5
0
5
0
1
0
4
3
0
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
0
2
0
5

7
1

11
2

29
1
1
4
8
2

28
2

21
24
44

5
2
2
1
5
6
4
1
1
1

145
1
1
1

16
3
9
1
6
2

18
11

6
5
2
2
2
2
1
1
1
2
2
1
2
8
8
1

22THEFT - SHOPLIFT
THEFT - PURSE SNATCH
THEFT - OTHER
THEFT - FROM MOTOR VEHICLE
THEFT - BUILDING
STOLEN PROPERTY - RECEIVING,BUYING,POSSESSING
STALKER
SEX CRIME - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH AN OBJECT
SEX CRIME - OTHER
SEX CRIME - NON-FORCE RAPE
SEX CRIME - MOLEST (PHYSICAL)
SEX CRIME - INCEST
SEX CRIME - FORCIBLE SODOMY
SEX CRIME - EXPOSER
SEX CRIME - CONTRIBUTE TO SEX DELINQUENCY
RESTRAINING ORDER VIOLATION
RECKLESSLY ENDANDERING
RECKLESS DRIVING
OTHER
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT
MINOR IN POSSESSION
KIDNAP - FOR ADDITIONAL CRIMINAL PURPOSE
INTIMIDATION /OTHER CRIMINAL THREAT
IDENTITY THEFT
HIT AND RUN-MISDEMEANOR
HIT AND RUN FELONY
GARBAGE LITTERING
FURNISHING
FUGITIVE ARREST FOR ANOTHER AGENCY
FRAUD - WIRE
FRAUD - NOT SUFFICIENT FUNDS CHECK
FRAUD - CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE
FRAUD - BY DECEPTION/FALSE PRETENSES
FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING
FORCIBLE RAPE
FAIL TO DISPLAY OPERATORS LICENSE
ESCAPE FROM YOUR CUSTODY
ELUDE
DWS/REVOKED-MISDEMEANOR
DRUG LAW VIOLATIONS
DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE
DISORDERLY CONDUCT
CUSTODY - PROTECITVE
CUSTODY - MENTAL
CURFEW
CRIME DAMAGE-NO VANDALISM OR ARSON
BURGLARY - RESIDENCE
BURGLARY - BUSINESS
ATTEMPTED MURDER
ASSAULT SIMPLE
ARSON
ANIMAL ORDINANCES
ANIMAL CRUELTY
AGGRAVATED ASSAULT

TotalAprMarFebJanCHARGE DESCRIPTION

Page 1 of 2

99



5/14/2019 Woodburn Police Department
MONTHLY ARRESTS BY OFFENSES 

2019 Year to Date

10
18

1
1
1
1
1
0
0

11
3
1
0
0
1
0
2
1

8
9
2
2
5
1
1
1
0

7
6
0
0
1
1
1
4
0

36
36

4
3
7
4
3
7
1WEAPON - SHOOTING IN PROHIBITED AREA

WEAPON - POSSESS ILLEGAL
WEAPON - EX FELON IN POSSESSION
WEAPON - CARRY CONCEALED
VEHICLE RECOVERD FOR OTHER AGENCY
VANDALISM
UNAUTHORIZED ENTRY INTO MOTOR VEHICLE
TRESPASS
TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS

TotalAprMarFebJan

178 115 157 146 5962019 Total
TotalAprMarFebJan

187 111 138 136 5722018 Total
135 169 176 166 6462017 Total

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2017 2018 2019

646
572 596

Year

A
rr

es
ts

Arrests / Year

Page 2 of 2

1010



Woodburn Police Department
MONTHLY CRIMINAL OFFENSES 

2019 Year to Date

5/14/2019

3
0
3
1

12
0
2
2
8

16
1
1

10
0
3
5
9
1
1
0
1
1
2
9
2
3
0
1

27
0
1
1

23
6
1
1
0

19
8

20
6
3
2
2
2
0
1
2
1
2
1
1
0
0
0
1
0

4
0
1
2
8
0
1
1
2

14
0
0
6
0
6
7
7
1
1
0
0
0
1
2
5
2
0
0

18
0
0
1
8
5
0
0
0

18
6

12
3
4
2
6
3
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
1
1
1
2

2
0
3
0
7
0
1
3
5

15
0
0
9
0
5
8

15
1
1
2
0
0
1
7
6
2
0
0

28
1
0
1

13
3
1
0
2

25
13

8
7
4
0
3
0
1
0
0
0
1
2
0
1
1
0
0
5

4
1
0
0

14
1
0
1
6

10
0
1
5
1
5
5
9
2
2
0
0
0
3
3
2
2
1
0

26
0
0
0

19
3
6
0
1

21
9

12
5
2
0
5
3
3
1
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
6
3

13
1
7
3

41
1
4
7

21
55

1
2

30
1

19
25
40

5
5
2
1
1
7

21
15

9
1
1

99
1
1
3

63
17

8
1
3

83
36
52
21
13

4
16

8
5
2
2
1
4
3
1
2
2
1
8

10

AGGRAVATED ASSAULT
ANIMAL CRUELTY
ANIMAL ORDINANCES
ARSON
ASSAULT SIMPLE
ATTEMPTED MURDER
BURGLARY - BUSINESS
BURGLARY - OTHER STRUCTURE
BURGLARY - RESIDENCE
CRIME DAMAGE-NO VANDALISM OR ARSON
CRIMINAL MISTREATMENT
CURFEW
CUSTODY - MENTAL
CUSTODY - PROTECITVE
DISORDERLY CONDUCT
DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE
DRUG LAW VIOLATIONS
DWS/REVOKED-MISDEMEANOR
ELUDE
ESCAPE FROM YOUR CUSTODY
EXPLOSIVES
FAIL TO DISPLAY OPERATORS LICENSE
FORCIBLE RAPE
FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING
FRAUD - BY DECEPTION/FALSE PRETENSES
FRAUD - CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE
FRAUD - NOT SUFFICIENT FUNDS CHECK
FRAUD - OF SERVICES/FALSE PRETENSES
FUGITIVE ARREST FOR ANOTHER AGENCY
FURNISHING
GARBAGE LITTERING
HIT AND RUN FELONY
HIT AND RUN-MISDEMEANOR
IDENTITY THEFT
INTIMIDATION /OTHER CRIMINAL THREAT
KIDNAP - FOR ADDITIONAL CRIMINAL PURPOSE
MINOR IN POSSESSION
MISCELLANEOUS
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT
NON CRIMINAL DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE
OTHER
PROPERTY - FOUND LOST MISLAID
PROPERTY RECOVER FOR OTHER AGENCY
RECKLESS DRIVING
RESTRAINING ORDER VIOLATION
RUNAWAY
SEX CRIME - EXPOSER
SEX CRIME - FORCIBLE SODOMY
SEX CRIME - INCEST
SEX CRIME - MOLEST (PHYSICAL)
SEX CRIME - NON-FORCE RAPE
SEX CRIME - OTHER
SEX CRIME - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH AN OBJECT
STALKER
STOLEN PROPERTY - RECEIVING,BUYING,POSSESSING
THEFT - BICYCLE
THEFT - BUILDING

TotalAprMarFebJanCHARGE DESCRIPTION

Page 1 of 2 1111



Woodburn Police Department
MONTHLY CRIMINAL OFFENSES 

2019 Year to Date

5/14/2019

0
25

2
14

1
1

12
11

8
3

16
5
1
1
1
1

1
18

2
7
1
1

14
6
6
0
8
3
1
0
0
3

0
27

1
16

1
0

22
11
10

2
13

5
1
1
1
1

1
8
1

24
0
0

21
8
8
1

12
3
1
1
4
0

2
78

6
61

3
2

69
36
32

6
49
16

4
3
6
5

THEFT - COIN OP MACHINE
THEFT - FROM MOTOR VEHICLE
THEFT - MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES
THEFT - OTHER
THEFT - PICKPOCKET
THEFT - PURSE SNATCH
THEFT - SHOPLIFT
TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS
TRESPASS
UNAUTHORIZED ENTRY INTO MOTOR VEHICLE
VANDALISM
VEHICLE RECOVERD FOR OTHER AGENCY
WEAPON - CARRY CONCEALED
WEAPON - EX FELON IN POSSESSION
WEAPON - POSSESS ILLEGAL
WEAPON - SHOOTING IN PROHIBITED AREA

TotalAprMarFebJan

322 292 355 317 1,2862017 Total

409 284 317 342 1,3522018 Total

330 235 325 297 1,1872019 Total  
TotalAprMarFebJan

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

2017 2018 2019

1,286 1,352
1,187

YEAR

O
F

F
E

N
S

E
S

Offenses / Year

Page 2 of 2 1212



Woodburn Police Department
ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS 

2019 Year to Date

5/14/2019

38

0

66

2

1

34

141

29

1

39

0

0

30

99

44

0

50

1

2

51

148

36

0

34

0

1

45

116

147

1

189

3

4

160

5042019 Total 

Ordinance - Oth Violation

Ordinance - Land Use Violations

Ordinance - Abate Graffiti

Ordinance - Abandoned Vehicles

Ordiinance - Abate/Nuisances

Animal Complaint

TotalAprMarFebJanOrdinance Discription

176 133 156 182 6472018 Total

94 126 176 177 5732017 Total   

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2017 2018 2019

513
582

426

COMBINED TOTAL - CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS

V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
S

Ordinance Violations / Code Enforcement Officers

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2017 2018 2019

220
309

504

YEAR TOTALS FOR ALL OFFICERS

V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
S

Ordinance Violations / Year

1
1313



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance ___x__ 

  June 10, 2019 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator  
 
FROM: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director 
  
SUBJECT: Legislative Amendments related to multiple-family dwellings in the 

Commercial General (“CG”) Zoning District (LA 2019-01) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
The Council must first receive public testimony and close the public hearing. 
 
Staff then recommends that Council, by motion, tentatively approve the 
proposed legislative amendment to Table 2.03C of the Woodburn Development 
Ordinance (as recommended by the Planning Commission) and direct staff to 
prepare the necessary ordinance.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Due to a recent increase in interest from multiple-family developers pursuing 
projects in the CG District, staff reviewed the specifics of how/when the City 
modified the Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) to allow this use.  As part 
of a major re-write of the WDO in 2013, multiple-family dwelling units became 
allowable as a permitted use in the CG Zoning District; previously, they had been 
prohibited outright in the district.  A review of the 2013 record indicated that there 
was no analyses or deliberation by the Council related to the implications of this 
critical policy decision. 
 
After raising these concerns to the Council on April 8, 2019, Resolution 2131 was 
adopted initiating this legislative process to review and consider amendments to 
address the issue of multiple-family dwellings in the CG Zoning District.  On May 
13th, staff briefed the Council on the issue and developed the recommendation 
included in this report. 
 
Attached is the complete staff report with attachments that was prepared for the 
May 23, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting.  It includes a survey of how other 
similar cities address this zoning issue.    
 
Prior to the Commission hearing, staff received a significant number of phone calls 
and emails. This was due to the extensive “Measure 56” notices (+350 letters) that 

25



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
were mailed.  The majority of these were general inquiries about the legislative 
proposal that were easily addressed by staff.   
 
Four people testified at the Commission hearing; a key concern being what 
impact this legislative change would have on an existing multiple-family building 
(Panor 360 Condominium) if it ever had to be rebuilt due to a catastrophic event.   
Staff discussed the non-conforming standards of the WDO and clarified that multi-
family uses would still permissible, but they would be subject to the Conditional 
Use approval standards (as well as any other building code or fire/life safety 
requirements).  
 
After closing the hearing and deliberating, the Planning Commission, by 
unanimous vote recommended that the Council adopt the amendment as 
proposed by staff. 
 
All written testimony received is attached to this report.   The Panor 360 
Condominium Board President submitted a petition from its residents objecting to 
the amendment.  Additionally, the Fair Housing Council of Oregon (“FHC”) and 
Housing Lands Advocates (“HLC”) jointly provided a letter requesting additional 
findings related to Statewide Goal 10 Housing and ORS 197.175(2)(a).   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
No direct impacts.  However, modifying the WDO to ensure that development 
occurs consistent with the City’s long-range growth plans (Comprehensive Plan) 
allows for greater predictability, balance and efficiency for providing public 
services; thus reducing those costs over the long term.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1.   Planning Commission Staff Report  
 101.  Strikethrough and Underlined Amending Text 
 102.  Analysis & Findings 
 103.  Council resolution No. 2131 

104.  Survey of select cities regulations for multi-family in commercial zones 
105.  Zoning Map  
 

2.   Written testimony received  
 
3.  Zoning Map 
 
 

26



  

 
 

Staff Report 
 
To: Planning Commission 
 

From: Chris Kerr, Community Development Director  
 
Meeting Date: May 23, 2019 (Prepared May 14, 2019) 
 
Item: Legislative Amendments related to multiple-family dwellings in the 

Commercial General (CG) Zoning District (LA 2019-01) 
 

Table of Contents 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................... 2 

DISCUSSION .................................................................................................................. 2 

RECOMMENDATION ....................................................................................................... 4 

ACTIONS ....................................................................................................................... 5 

ATTACHMENT LIST ......................................................................................................... 5 
 
  

27



LA 2019-01 
Staff Report 
Page 2 of 5 

Executive Summary 
 
On April 8, 2019 the City Council approved Resolution No. 2131 initiating this legislative process 
to review and consider amendments to address the issue of multiple-family dwellings in the 
Commercial General (“CG”) Zoning District.  On May 13th, Staff briefed the Council on the issue 
and developed the recommendation included in this report. 
 
As part of a major re-write of the Woodburn Development Ordinance (WDO) in 2013, multiple-
family dwelling units became allowable as a permitted use in the CG Zoning District; previously, 
they had been prohibited in the district.  Due to a recent increase in interest from multiple-
family developers pursuing projects in the CG District, Staff reviewed the specifics of how the 
City adopted the amendment.  A review of the 2013 record indicated that there was no 
analyses, deliberation or findings related to the implications of this critical policy decision.   
 
Discussion  
 
At the heart of the issue is the fact that the WDO now allows multiple-family housing to be 
constructed in the CG Zoning District as a permitted use.  A permitted use under the code is a 
use that is allowed outright, subject only to objective standards of the WDO.  There is no 
discretion for decision makers to consider the appropriateness or compatibility of the use or 
apply impact-based site specific conditions for such developments.  Examples of typical 
permitted uses would be retail sales in the CG District or multiple-family housing in the Medium 
Density Residential District.   
 
Using commercial land for multiple-family residential purposes has significant long and short 
term ramifications.  Some cities prohibit multiple-family dwellings in their commercial districts 
entirely.  However, it is not unusual for communities to allow multiple-family housing to be 
allowed in certain commercial districts or through specific development requirements and 
conditions (typically as part of a mixed use development). Approving these developments 
usually includes a more detailed review process such as a Conditional Use (“CU”) review.  A CU 
review allows for greater scrutiny of a project.  For example, the WDO allows schools in 
residentially zoned areas; however, due to the incongruous nature of the activities that can 
occur with this use, they are subject to a CU approval.  This permits schools to be built in 
residential districts, but allows the Planning Commission to consider applicable Comprehensive 
Plan Policies and to apply reasonable conditions of approval to mitigate any adverse impacts. 
 
The principal purpose of zoning property is to provide for a basic level of predictability 
regarding future development.  While land use regulations and the Zoning Map are not static 
and can and should be modified to address changing conditions, it is imperative that 
communities be able to reliably forecast and plan for growth over time.  The City has completed 
numerous analyses and made distinct findings related meeting its to housing, employment and 

28



LA 2019-01 
Staff Report 
Page 3 of 5 

retail needs.  The expected uses on property in the city serve as the basis for decision making at 
all levels of government.  Decisions about fees, taxes, levels of service, infrastructure, 
transportation, employment, parks, schools, police and fire are all predicated on the type of 
development (e.g. residential, commercial, office, institutional, multiple-family) that will occur 
in the future.  This predictability is also a fundamental market signal for private sector 
investments as well.  
 
All of the City’s long-range population and planning documents assume that property zoned CG 
would be utilized and developed predominantly for commercial uses, not multiple-family 
dwellings.  Property zoned CG is expected to develop over time in a manner that will meet the 
community’s retail and employment needs.  If it is used for housing instead of commercial, that 
need will not be met.  
 
One way to regulate alternative uses in a zoning district is to apply an overlay to a Zoning 
District.   The WDO includes overlay districts that serve to apply specific development standards 
to specific geographic areas.  An example of this is the Gateway Commercial General Overlay 
District which applies to a portion of the CG District east of downtown.  This area is still zoned 
CG, but also has additional Gateway Overlay District standards. A stated purpose of the 
Gateway Commercial General Overlay District is to allow for multiple-family housing only on 
these specific CG properties.  
 

 
Figure 2.05A    Gateway Commercial General Overlay District 
 

29



LA 2019-01 
Staff Report 
Page 4 of 5 

Another overlay district in the City is the Interchange Management Area (“IMA”) Overlay 
District.  One of the stated purposes of this Overlay District is to ensure that highway 
interchange capacity is to ensure that “needed industrial, commercial and residential lands 
within the IMA are protected from incompatible development generating excessive vehicle 
trips." (WDO 2.05.02A)  
 

 
Interchange Management Area Overlay District 
 
The City processes modifications to the Comprehensive Plan and/or WDO pursuant to the 
legislative hearing processes found in WDO Section 4.01.10, which requires a public hearing and 
recommendation from the Planning Commission followed by a public hearing and ordinance 
adoption by the Council.  Staff has already noticed the Council hearing for June 10, 2019.   
 
Recommendation   
 
Staff recommends adoption of the amending text found in Attachment 101 that would serve to 
accomplish the following:  
 
1.   Require Conditional Use approval for multiple-family dwellings in the CG District. 
2.  Prohibit multiple-family dwellings in the area of the CG District within the IMA Overlay. 

Black line represents 
approximate IMA 
boundary, per WDO 
Figure 2.05B. 

30



LA 2019-01 
Staff Report 
Page 5 of 5 

 
(This would still allow multiple-family dwellings as ‘permitted uses’ in the Gateway Commercial 
Overlay) 
 
Staff believes making this amendment to the WDO would serve two vital purposes: (1) allow for 
a mixture of residential and commercial uses while provided reasonable regulations and 
oversight on multiple-family housing development in the CG District; and (2) preserve and protect 
critical commercial lands within the IMA overlay predominantly for commercial uses.  
 
Actions 
 
Pursuant to WDO 4.01.10, the role of the Planning Commission is to make a recommendation 
to the City Council on all legislative amendments.   Staff will forward the Commission’s 
recommendation and any pertinent discussion from the hearing to the City Council for its 
consideration.   
 
Attachment List 
 
101.  Strikethrough and Underlined Amending Text 
102.  Analyses & Findings 
103.  Council Resolution No. 2131   
104.  Survey of Select Cities regulations for multiple-family development in commercial zones 
105.  Zoning Map 
 
 

31



Attachment 101 
 

Uses Allowed in Commercial Zones 

Table 2.03C 

Use Zone 

Accessory Uses (A)     Conditional Uses (CU)     Permitted Uses (P) 

Special Permitted Uses (S)     Specific Conditional Uses (SCU) 
DDC CG CO MUV NNC 

       

E Residential      

1 Attached single-family (row houses) dwellings  P P 2  P P 

2 Child care facility, group home, and nursing home P 8 P 8 P 8 P 8 P 8 

3 One dwelling unit, in conjunction with a commercial use  P P P P P 

4 Multiple-family dwellings P PCU 9 CU P P 

1. Not allowed in the Gateway Overlay District 

2. Only allowed in the Gateway Overlay District 

3. Allowed outright if not within 200 feet of residentially zoned properties 

4. Within a building, no outdoor storage or repair 

5. All outdoor storage and display shall be enclosed by a seven foot masonry wall. 

6. Existing uses are allowed as a permitted use, new uses are not allowed in the MUV 

7. Drive-throughs are not allowed 

8. Child care facility for 13 or more children, group home for six or more persons 
 
9.   Except allowed as a permitted use in the Gateway Overlay District and prohibited in the 

Interchange Management Area Overlay District  
 

32



Attachment 102 
 

LA 2019-01  
Page 1 of 5 

Analyses & Findings 
 
Legislative Amendment Provisions 
 
4.01 Decision-Making Procedures 
 
4.01.02E. Type V Decisions (Legislative): Type V decisions involve legislative actions where the City 
Council enacts or amends the City’s land use regulations, comprehensive plan, Official Zoning Map or 
some component of these documents. Type V decisions may only be initiated by the City Council. The 
Planning Commission holds an initial public hearing on the proposal before making a recommendation 
to the City Council. The City Council then holds a final public hearing and renders a decision. Public 
notice is provided for all public hearings (Section 4.01.14). The City Council’s decision is the City’s final 
decision and is appealable to LUBA within 21 days after it becomes final. 
 
This legislative amendment was initiated by the City Council on April 8, 2019 via Resolution 
2131.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 23, 2019 prior to making a formal 
recommendation to the City Council on this matter.  
 

  The provisions are met. 
 

Comprehensive Plan Policies, OAR’s & Statewide Planning Goals 
 
Staff identifies below applicable comprehensive or “comp” plan policies and Statewide Planning 
Goals to guide Commission deliberation. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Policies 
 
Staff cites relevant comp plan provisions below: 
 
B-2.   Woodburn shall coordinate with affected state agencies regarding proposed comprehensive 
plan and land use regulation amendments, as required by state law. 
 
All state, county and regional entities were notified pursuant to state law.   
 
D-1.3 Development should promote, through the use of moderate density standards and creative 
design, a feeling of openness and spaciousness with sufficient landscaped area and open space to 
create a pleasant living environment.  Higher density areas should be located near jobs, shopping 
and/or potential transit services. 
 

33



LA 2019-01 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 2 of 5 

The proposed amendment allows multi-family apartments (high-density) to be built near jobs, 
shopping opportunities and transit services.  The CUP process allows for a review to ensure that 
that spaciousness, openness, and sufficient landscaped areas will be provided.    
 
D-1.10   High density residential areas should be located to minimize the possible deleterious effects on 
any adjacent low density residential development.  When high density and low density areas abut, 
density should decrease in those high density areas immediately adjacent to low density residential 
land.  Whenever possible, buffering should be practiced by such means as landscaping, sight-obscuring 
fences and hedges, and increased setbacks.  This policy does not apply in Nodal Development areas. 
 
The CUP process allows for conditions to be applied to consider site conditions and to address 
possible deleterious effects on any adjacent low density development.  The CUP process allows 
consideration of the practices, such as buffering, landscaping, sight-obscuring fences, etc.   
 
F. Commercial Land Development and Employment 
 
Commercial Land Designations 
 
There are basically five major commercial areas in Woodburn, and they should serve the City for the 
foreseeable future. 
…. 
 
The third large area of commercial development in the City is the I-5 Interchange.  This contains one 
small shopping center, a large retail use (Wal-Mart), a developing outlet mall, and other highway 
related uses.  In general, commercial uses on the west side of the freeway should be limited to 
highway related interchange type uses, while on the east side, a more general commercial nature 
should be encouraged.  There are approximately 60 acres available for development located 
southwest of Evergreen Road.  This land should be developed as a large integrated shopping center 
when Woodburn's population justifies it.  Access control in the I-5 interchange area is extremely 
important, because traffic congestion is the limiting factor for growth west of the freeway.   
 
The proposed amendments serve to protect this commercial area, which is recognized as a 
critical location in the City, from being developed as multi-family residential.  This Policy 
encourages general commercial and highway related interchange uses at this location.  The 
Policy specifies that this area be developed as a “large integrated shopping center” and this 
code amendment furthers that objective.  
 
F-1.8  Ensure that existing commercial sites are used efficiently.  Consider the potential for 
redevelopment of existing commercial sites and modifications to zoning regulations that intensify 
development to attract new investment. 
 

34



LA 2019-01 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 3 of 5 

The proposed amendment is specifically designed to meet this policy by ensuring that existing 
commercial sites (such as those in the IMA District) are used efficiently.  Without this 
amendment they could be developed as residential uses, causing a deficiency in meeting the 
city’s retail needs.  
 
F-1.10  The Downtown Gateway sub-district of the CG zoning district is an area which extends eastward 
from Highway 99E towards downtown.  Special use provisions within the sub-district shall allow multi-
family residential development either as a stand-alone use or as part of a vertical mixed use project.  
The intent of allowing multi-family residential development in this area is to provide more consumers 
living within an area of commercial development and to provide 24-hour a day life into the eastern 
entrance to the downtown. 
 
F-1.11 The Highway 99E commercial corridor south of Lincoln should be redeveloped over time with 
more intense mixed use development.  The Mixed Use Village Overlay (MUVO) designates an area 
that is intended to promote efficient use of land and urban services; create a mixture of land uses that 
encourages employment and housing options in close proximity to one another; restrict land 
extensive commercial, storage, and industrial uses; and encourage pedestrian-oriented development.   
 
Both of these Policies recognize that a allowing a mixture of residential and commercial uses in 
some areas of the city are appropriate and desirable.  The Comprehensive Plan and WDO were 
both amended to include residential uses in two commercial areas - the “Gateway” and Mixed 
Use Village” Districts.  The City determined that these were the appropriate areas for mixed use 
in the City and designed architectural standards for each of them and adopted them into the 
WDO.  The proposed code amendments retains these provisions and does not effect these 
Districts.  
 
G-1.25  Woodburn has identified two areas for mixed-use development – Downtown Woodburn and 
the Nodal Development District along Parr Road.  The UGB Justification Report includes specific 
estimates of the number of new housing units and commercial jobs that can be accommodated in these 
overlay districts. 
 
This policy specifically notes the two commercial districts in the City that are intended to be 
used for both commercial and residential uses.  It also states that the City’s long-range planning 
allocated a certain number of houses in these commercial areas.   Tellingly, it does not include 
the general CG District.  The proposed code change will rectify this planning oversight and 
result in more accurate commercial data and housing estimates.  
 
H-6.4  Woodburn should provide for a complementary mix of land uses and transportation systems 
by providing for mixed use development in the Downtown Development and Conservation (DDC) 
District, the Mixed Use Village (MUV), and the Nodal Development Overlay (NDO) districts. 
 

35



LA 2019-01 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 4 of 5 

As in the previous policy, this is another example of the city actively pursuing and identifying a 
mixture of uses in specific commercial areas.  These are identified as the DDC, MUV and NDO 
Districts.  Notably, the CG district is not included.  This code amendment will make the WDO 
consistent with these Policies of the Plan.  
 
Statewide Planning Goals 
 
Of the 19 goals, staff cites relevant ones below. 
 
Goal 1  Citizen Involvement [Oregon Administrative Rules 660-015-0000(1)] 
To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in 
all phases of the planning process. 
 
All required notices were provided per the City’s WDO, consistent with the acknowledged 
comprehensive plan.  Including all specific required mailings, newspaper ads, and hearing 
procedures. 
 
Also, Ballot Measure 56 requires cities to provide an additional notice to affected property 
owners when there is a change that “limits or prohibits land uses previously allowed in the 
affected zone”.  This expanded notice was provided and resulted in over 350 notices being 
mailed to the public.  
 
The amendments will result in greater opportunities for public scrutiny by requiring a 
conditional use review by the Planning Commission for all multi-family developments in the CG 
District.  
   
Goal 14  Urbanization [OAR 660-015-0000(14)] 
To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to accommodate urban 
population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, 
and to provide for livable communities. 
 
The proposal does not interfere with the City meeting this goal, the City having undergone 
comp plan periodic review leading to the 2015 adoption of the urban growth boundary (UGB) 
expansion that the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) acknowledged.  
These amendments will help to ensure optimum use of the city’s commercial lands, as well as 
providing a level of flexibility to accommodate the market and create opportunities for mixed 
use developments.  
 
Oregon Administrative Rules:  
660-008-0015 Clear and Objective Approval Standards Required 

36

http://www.oregon.gov/LCD/docs/goals/goal01.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/LCD/docs/goals/goal14.pdf


LA 2019-01 Staff Report 
Attachment 102 

Page 5 of 5 

(1) Except as provided in section (2) of this rule, a local government may adopt and apply only clear 
and objective standards, conditions and procedures regulating the development of needed housing on 
buildable land. The standards, conditions and procedures may not have the effect, either in 
themselves or cumulatively, of discouraging needed housing through unreasonable cost or delay 
 
The proposal preserves the existing clear and objective standards for all identified needed 
housing on buildable lands in the City.  
 

  The legislative provisions are met.  Staff recommends approval of the proposal. 

37



COUNCIL BILL NO. 3096 

RESOLUTION NO. 2131 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING CONSIDERATION OF LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENTS TO THE 
WOODBURN DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AND THE WOODBURN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Woodburn Development Ordinance (the WDO) establishes 
development standards and requirements that must be consistent with State law 
and the Woodburn Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, frequent amendments to the WDO are required to comply with State 
law, ensure consistency with the Woodburn Comprehensive Plan and to address 
community issues; and 

WHEREAS, on August 12, 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2509 (a 240 
page document) that was an overall revision of the then existing WDO; and 

WHEREAS, part of Ordinance 2509 expanded residential uses permitted in 
commercial zones; and 

WHEREAS, the record indicates that the Planning staff report and the City 
Council's deliberations did not address the policy or legal implications of expanding 
the residential uses permitted in commercial zones; and 

WHEREAS, because this WDO modification occurred with errors in the Planning 
process, issues are created regarding public involvement and adequate notice; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that the above-mentioned deficiencies 
can and should be remedied by the City's land use process; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4.01.09 of the WDO allows for the City Council to initiate the 
consideration of any potential legislative amendments to the WDO by resolution; 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Pursuant to Section 4.01.09 of the WDO, the City Council initiates for 
consideration legislative amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and WDO as they 
relate to residential uses allowable in commercial zones and directs staff to expedite 
this process. 

Approved as to form: m. ~ 
Page 1 - Council Bill No. 3096 

Resolution No. 2131 

Attachment 103

38



Passed by the Council 
Submitted to the Mayor 
Approved by the Mayor 

Filed in the Office~e Recorder 

ATIEST:~t'~~ 
H~ather Pierson, City Recorder 
City of Woodburn, Oregon 

Page 1 - Council Bill No. 3096 
Resolution No. 2131 

39



City Zone Provisions for Multifamily Development Additional Notes
CG - Commercial General Permitted. Up to 32 units/net acre.
CO - Commercial Office Conditional Use. 
Gateway Commercial Overlay District Permitted.

CR - Retail Commercial Conditional Use. No density limits specified.
CG - General Commercial Conditional Use. No density limits specified.

Pine Street Mixed-Use Overlay Zone
Permitted if within a mixed-use development; 
Conditional Use if purely residential.

Minimum density of 20 units/acre for 
single-use multifamily development 
(not mixed use).

C-1 - Neighborhood Commercial Prohibited.

C-2 - Community Commercial Conditional Use.
 The permitted density shall be stated 
on the conditional use permit.

CG - Commercial General Prohibited.
CR - Commercial Retail Prohibited.

McMinnville C-3 General Commercial

Permitted, subject to provisions of the R-4 
Multiple-Family Residential zone. If developer 
wants to build at higher density than what is 
permitted outright, it becomes a Conditional Use.

In R-4 zone: 1,500 sq ft minimum for 
units with 2 or fewer bedrooms; 1750 
sq ft minimum for each unit with 3 
bedrooms. Additional 500 sq ft 
required for each bedroom in excess 
of three.

C-C Convenience Commercial Prohibited.
No land in town carries this zoning 
designation. The City is considering 
eliminating the zone.

C-2 Highway Commercial Permitted only within mixed use development. No density limits specified.

Wilsonville
PDC - Planned Development Commercial 
(4.131.01A.5.)

Permitted only if part of a vertical mixed-use 
development.

The majority of the total ground floor 
area must be commercial.

Woodburn

Salem

Newberg

Keizer

Canby

At
ta

ch
m

en
t 1

04

40



NC - Neighborhood Commercial Prohibited.

GC - General Commercial
Permitted only if part of a vertical mixed-use 
development. 

Dwellings may also occupy a portion 
of the ground floor in the Willamette 
Falls Drive Commercial Design District 
(pursuant to CDC 58.050).

Molalla C-2 General Commercial Permitted. No density limits specified.

C-1 Neighborhood Commercial
Permitted only if the ground floor of the 
development is commercial/non-residential uses.

No density limits specified.

C-2 Community Commercial Permitted. No density limits specified.
C-3 Major Commercial Permitted. No density limits specified.

CN - Neighborhood Commercial Prohibited.
CG - General Commercial Prohibited.

GC - General Commercial Permitted only above ground floor commercial.

DCF - Downtown Commercial Fringe Permitted only above ground floor commercial.
Silverton

Eugene

Tualatin

West Linn

41



RM

City of Woodburn Zoning

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
GIS/Engineering

Ö

I
0 700350

Feet
Disclaimer: This map is a graphic representation using the most

current information available. However, it should not be considered
accurate for scaling. Last updated and printed on 5/14/2019.

LEGEND
City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary
Assessor Taxlot

Stream
Railroad
City ROW

Adopted by The Woodburn City Council on September 26, 2011 (Ordinance #: 2480).

Zone
Change Number

Zone
Change NumberOrdinance Number Ordinance Number

ZONING LEGEND

(1
(2
(3
(4
(5
(6
(7
(8
(9
(1 0
(1 1

2167
1873
2384
1937
1802
2150
2233

77-02 (case #)
2322
2361
2490

Zone Change (See Below for Ordinance #)(1

(1 2
(1 3
(1 4
(1 5
(1 6

(1 7
(1 8
(1 9
(2 0

2492
2499
2519
2539

2550-2551
2548

2563/2564
2565/2566
2570/2571

RS - Residential Single Family
RSN - Nodal Single Family Residential
R1S - Retirement Community Single Family Residential
RM - Medium Density Residential
RMN - Nodal Multi-Family Residential
CG - Commercial General
CO - Commercial Office
DDC - Downtown Development and Conservation
MUV - Mixed Use Village
IL - Light Industrial
IP - Industrial Park
P/SP - Public and Semi-Public
Southwest Industrial Reserve
Gateway Commercial General Overlay
Interchange Management Area Overlay (IMA)
Neighborhood Conservation Overlay (NCOD)
Riparian Corridor & Wetlands Overlay (RCWOD)
Significant Wetland
Other Wetland

Population  24,670*
*as of July 1, 2015

Adopted by The Woodburn City Council on September 26, 2011 (Ordinance #: 2480).

May 2019

42

colinco
Text Box
Attachment 105



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Agenda Item 
 
 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___City Attorney ___x___Finance ____x___ 

                                                                                June 10, 2019 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Sandra Montoya, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: FY 2018-2019 SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET REQUEST #4 FOR 

CLOSURE OF MUSEUM ENDOWMENT FUND 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt the resolution authorizing up to $860 transfer from contingency to materials 
and services, and subsequent closure of the fund.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Every year, after Council budget adoption, circumstances arise that were either 
unforeseen, unquantifiable, or discovered as errors. Oregon Budget Law, ORS 
294.471(1) provides for changes to adopted budgets through a transfer resolution 
or supplemental budget process that notices the proposed changes. Transfers in 
excess of 15 percent of any fund’s total expenditures, or supplemental budget 
changes in excess of 10 percent of any fund’s total expenditures, require a public 
hearing to accept public testimony on the item under consideration.  
 
A public hearing was required for this supplemental budget. Like the adopted 
budget, supplemental budget requests must be balanced; in other words, net 
revenue and net expense for the request must be equal.  This can be 
accomplished by budgeting additional revenue or by reducing another 
expenditure category (such as contingencies). 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The independent auditors recommended a periodic review and closure of funds 
and accounts with little to no activity. The Museum Endowment Fund, with less 
than $400 of expenditure activity each year, was identified as a candidate for 
closure. Future Museum activities will be budgeted in the Community Service 
Fund. The fund has not been budgeted in FY 2019-20. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
If the resolution is approved, the following changes will be made: 
 

55



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019  
Page 2 
 

 
 
 

Museum Endowment Fund 691
Resource Original Change Revised Requirement Original Change Revised

1 Materials & Services -              860             860             
2 Contingency 860             (860)            -              

Revised Total Fund Resources -               Revised Total Fund Requirements 860             
Comments:  Transfer of Contingency balance to Materials & Services

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED BUDGET CHANGES
AMOUNTS SHOWN ARE REVISED TOTALS IN THOSE FUNDS BEING MODIFIED

56



Page 1 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3097 
                RESOLUTION NO. 2132 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3097 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2132 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TRANSFERS OF FY 2018-2019 APPROPRIATIONS AND 
APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET 
 
 WHEREAS, ORS 294.463(1) permits “transfers of appropriations” within any 
fund “when authorized by official resolution or ordinance of the governing body”; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463(2) limits “transfers of general operating contingency 
appropriations to no more than fifteen (15) percent of the total appropriations of 
the fund” unless adopted pursuant to a supplemental budget; and  
 

WHEREAS, transfers made pursuant to any of the above must state the need 
for the transfer, the purpose for the authorized expenditure, and the amount of 
the appropriation transferred; and  
 

WHEREAS, ORS 294.471(1)(a) permits supplemental budgets when “an 
occurrence of condition which had not been ascertained at the time of the 
preparation of a budget for the current year or current budget period which 
requires a change in financial planning”; and  

 
WHEREAS, ORS 294.473 requires the governing body to hold a public 

hearing on the supplemental budget when the estimated expenditures 
contained in the supplemental budget for fiscal year or budget period differ by 
ten (10) percent or more of any one of the individual funds contained in the 
regular budget for that fiscal year; and  

 
WHEREAS, the transfers contained herein are made pursuant to ORS 

294.463; and 
 
WHEREAS, the supplemental budget contained herein is made pursuant to 

ORS 294.471; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held June 10, 2019 on the supplemental 

budget changes, NOW, THEREFORE,  
 
THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That pursuant to the applicable ORS provisions cited above, the 

City Council hereby approves the transfers of appropriations and supplemental 
budget for FY 2018-19 in the amounts shown below for the purposes of closing out 
the fund due to low activity.  

57



Page 2 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3097 
                RESOLUTION NO. 2132 

 

 
 
 
Approved as to Form:          
         City Attorney    Date 
 
 
     APPROVED:       
       Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
 
Passed by the Council          
Submitted to the Mayor          
Approved by the Mayor          
Filed in the Office of the Recorder        
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
  Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
  City of Woodburn, Oregon 

Museum Endowment Fund 691
Resource Original Change Revised Requirement Original Change Revised

1 Materials & Services -              860             860             
2 Contingency 860             (860)            -              

Revised Total Fund Resources -               Revised Total Fund Requirements 860             
Comments:  Transfer of Contingency balance to Materials & Services

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED BUDGET CHANGES
AMOUNTS SHOWN ARE REVISED TOTALS IN THOSE FUNDS BEING MODIFIED

58



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __X____ City Attorney ___X___ Finance _X___ 

June 10, 2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 

FROM: Sandra Montoya, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 City Budget Adoption (Goals 1-12)

RECOMMENDATION: 

Conduct a public hearing to consider the budget as approved by the Budget 
Committee, and upon completion of the hearing, approve the resolution 
adopting the budget and capital improvements plan, making appropriations, 
and declaring and categorizing taxes for FY 2019-20.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Budget Committee of the City of Woodburn met and approved the budget 
of $97,486,350 on April 27, 2019.  On May 29, 2019, the Woodburn Independent 
published the financial summary of the Budget Committee’s approved budget 
and a notice of the budget hearing before the City Council, in accordance with 
Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.438).   

Attachment 1 is a list of corrections made to the budget document since approval 
by the Budget Committee.  

DISCUSSION: 

Under Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.456) the City Council may modify the 
Budget Committee’s approved budget by an amount not to exceed $5,000 or 10 
percent of a fund’s expenditures, whichever is greater, without publishing a 
notice of a second budget hearing.  The Finance Department proposes adoption 
of the budget as approved by the Budget Committee with updates and 
corrections shown on Attachment 1 on the subsequent page. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The resolution adopts the FY 2019-20 annual budget of $97,486,350. 

59



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

Attachment 1 
City of Woodburn Budget Committee Approved Budget 

June 10, 2019 
Approved Budget Updates 

 
 
Following the Budget Committee’s FY 2019-20 budget approval, the following 
corrections have been made to the budget document:  
 
• Any identified issues with spelling, grammar, and formatting have been 

updated throughout the document, including condensing where possible.  
• Page 9: Sentence inserted to specify that the budget is balanced as required 

by state law. 
• Page 12: Second bullet corrected to show General Fund contingency level 

at 18.4 percent, before the addition of $1.0 million Shortfall Management 
Reserve (SMR) and a $345,000 Reserve for Facilities. 

• Page 12: Deleted the last two bullets as the information is shown elsewhere in 
the document.   

• Page 43: Replaced map with a more readable version. 
• Page 48: Corrected FTE count in FY 2018-19. 
• Page 55: Corrected Performance Measurement header. 
• Page 81: Removed prior year note regarding PERS Reserves moved to the 

newly created PERS Reserve Fund. 
• Page 82-83: Removed summary table to condense the Transit pages. 
• Prior page 103: Removed summary table and photo from Sewer pages. 
• Page 108-109: Combined sentences and removed blank lines to condense 

General Cap Construction pages. 
• Page 110-111: Reformatted to condense Street & Storm Cap Const Fund. 
• Page 118-119: Corrected Building Inspection Fund part-time building 

inspector from 0.25 to 0.5, and updated graph to improve legibility.  
• Pages 228-238: Updated Chart of Accounts to reflect active line items. 

 
 
 
 

60



Page 1 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3098 
                RESOLUTION NO. 2133 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3098  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2133 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2019-20 BUDGET; MAKING 
BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS; AND CATEGORIZING TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, the City Administrator, as Budget Officer for the City of 
Woodburn, Oregon, prepared and submitted the FY 2019-20 budget to the 
Budget Committee at its April 27, 2019 meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the April 27, 2019 Budget Committee meeting was noticed 

by publication in the Woodburn Independent newspaper on April 17, 2019; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held at the April 27, 2019 Budget 

Committee meeting after which time the budget was approved; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Budget Hearing and Financial Summary were 
published in the Woodburn Independent newspaper on May 29, 2019 as 
required by ORS 294.438; and 

 
WHEREAS, a second public hearing was held before the City Council 

at its meeting on June 10, 2019; and NOW, THEREFORE 
 
THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The City Council adopts the budget for FY 2019-20 in the sum of 
$97,486,350.  A copy of the budget document is now on file at temporary 
City Hall, 970 N Cascade Drive, Woodburn, Oregon. 
 
Section 2.  The City Council imposes the taxes provided for in the adopted 
budget at a permanent rate of $6.0534 per $1,000 of assessed value for 
operations, and in the aggregate amount of $594,030 for public safety 
general obligation (GO) bonds.  These taxes are hereby imposed and 
categorized for tax year 2019-20 based upon assessed value of all taxable 
property within the City. 
 
      General Government  Excluded from Limitation 
  Permanent Rate Limit         $6.0534/$1,000         - 
  GO Bond Levy         -               $594,030 
 
 
 
 

61



Page 2 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3098 
                RESOLUTION NO. 2133 

Section 3. FY 2019-20 budgets are appropriated at the fund levels shown:  
  

 
 
Approved as to Form:          
                     City Attorney    Date 
 
 
     APPROVED:       
        Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
Passed by the Council          
Submitted to the Mayor          
Approved by the Mayor          
Filed in the Office of the Recorder        
 
 
ATTEST:       
       Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
           City of Woodburn, Oregon 

Organization Operating* Transfers Debt Contingency Total Reserves Total
Administration 1,389,700   1,389,700    
Economic Development 170,290      170,290       
Police 8,078,740   8,078,740    
Community Services 3,606,040   3,606,040    
Planning 496,460      496,460       
Engineering 290,420      290,420       
Non-Departmental 339,100      408,290     575,000     1,322,390    
General Fund 3,761,890    3,761,890    1,355,000   
Total General Fund 14,370,750 408,290     575,000     3,761,890    19,115,930  1,355,000   20,470,930  
Transit 1,061,550   6,510         166,940       1,235,000    1,235,000    
Building 1,503,480   6,480         1,322,040    2,832,000    2,832,000    
Asset Forfeiture 15,000        15,000         15,000         
Housing Rehab 20,350        357,480       377,830       377,830       
Street 2,787,780   2,095,750  1,000,000    5,883,530    458,950      6,342,480    
GO Debt Service 570,200     570,200       570,200       
General Cap Const 2,466,020   2,466,020    2,466,020    
Special Assessment 21,720         21,720         21,720         
Street/Storm Cap Const 5,275,000   5,275,000    5,275,000    
Parks SDC 929,350      929,350       
Street SDC 1,500,000  1,500,000    2,843,230   4,343,230    
Storm SDC 140,000     140,000       546,580      686,580       
Sewer Cap Const 7,830,500   7,830,500    7,314,870   15,145,370  
Water Cap Const 2,786,360   2,786,360    2,786,360    
Water 2,720,490   65,850       1,624,950  128,780       4,540,070    1,964,930   6,505,000    
Sewer 4,383,060   1,046,200  4,469,000  798,660       10,696,920  6,937,080   17,634,000  
Water SDC 902,500     902,500       854,700      1,757,200    
Sewer SDC 2,107,410  2,107,410    2,107,410    
Information Technology 1,104,720   4,840         193,440       1,303,000    170,000      1,473,000    
Insurance 868,340      690            547,970       1,417,000    1,417,000    
Equipment Replacement 977,040      977,040       977,040       
PERS Reserve 2,089,710   2,089,710    2,089,710    
Lavelle Black Trust 20,000        8,920           28,920         28,920         
TOTAL 50,280,150 8,284,520  7,239,150  8,307,840    74,111,660  23,374,690 97,486,350  
*Operating Budget: Personnel, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay

62



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __X____ City Attorney ___X___ Finance _X___ 

 June 10, 2019 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council through City Administrator  
 
FROM: Sandra Montoya, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2019-20 Resolution Regarding State Revenue Sharing  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Conduct a public hearing to receive comment on the possible uses/distributions 
of state revenue sharing funds and adopt a resolution declaring the City’s 
eligibility and election to receive these funds.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In order for the City of Woodburn to receive a share of state revenues 
apportioned and distributed to Oregon cities during fiscal year (FY) 2019-20, the 
City Council must enact an ordinance or resolution certifying: 
 

1. Eligibility to receive state shared revenue per ORS 221.760; and 
2. Elect to receive state shared revenue per ORS 221.770. 

 
The ordinance or resolution must be filed with the Oregon Department of 
Administrative Services no later than July 31. Notice of the hearing was published 
on May 29, 2019 in the Woodburn Independent. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Upon completion of the public hearing, consider adopting a resolution to receive 
state shared revenue; $317,500 in the FY 2019-20 Approved Budget.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The resolution declares the City’s eligibility and qualification to receive state 
shared revenue, budgeted at $317,500 in the FY 2019-20 Approved Budget.    
 
 

63



Page 1 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3099 
                RESOLUTION NO. 2134 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3099 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2134 
 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE CITY OF WOODBURN’S ELIGIBILITY AND 
ELECTION TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUE SHARING 
 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Woodburn desires to receive a share of state 

revenues apportioned and distributed to the cities of the state during Fiscal 
Year 2019-2020 as provided in ORS 221.760 and ORS 221.770; and 
 

WHEREAS, ORS 221.760 provides as follows: 
 

The officer responsible for disbursing funds to cities under ORS 
323.455, 366.785 to 366.820 and 471.805 shall, in the case of a 
city located within a county having more than 100,000 
inhabitants according to the most recent federal decennial 
census, disburse such funds only if the city provides four or more 
of the following services:  

 
(1) Police Protection 
(2) Fire protection 
(3) Street construction, maintenance and lighting 
(4) Sanitary sewer 
(5) Storm sewers 
(6) Planning, zoning and subdivision control 
(7) One or more utility services 

 
WHEREAS, ORS 221.770(1)(a) requires that any city electing to receive 

a distribution must enact an ordinance or resolution expressing that 
election and file the same with the Oregon Department of Administrative 
Services no later than July 31; and 
 

WHEREAS, ORS 221.770(1)(b) requires that any city electing to receive 
a distribution must hold at least one public hearing at which citizens have 
the opportunity to provide written or oral comment on the possible uses of 
the distributions; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  That the City Council of the City of Woodburn hereby 
certifies that it provides the following four or more municipal services 
enumerated in Section 1, ORS 221.760: 

64



Page 2 – COUNCIL BILL NO. 3099 
                RESOLUTION NO. 2134 

 
Police protection 
Street construction, maintenance and lighting 
Sanitary sewer 
Storm sewers  
Planning, zoning and subdivision control 
One or more utility services 

 
Section 2.  The City of Woodburn hereby elects to receive 

distributions of state revenues during FY 2019-2020 pursuant to ORS 
221.770(1)(a). 
 

Section 3.  The City Council hereby certifies that it conducted a 
public hearing, after giving public notice, on June 10, 2019 and called for 
written and oral comment on the possible uses of the distributions and 
that the hearing complied with ORS 221.770(1)(b) and (c). 
 

Section 4.  The City Recorder is directed to certify compliance with 
the public hearing requirements and file this resolution with the Oregon 
Department of Administrative Services by July 31, 2019. 
 
 
Approved as to Form:          
         City Attorney    Date 
 
 
     APPROVED:       
       Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
 
Passed by the Council          
Submitted to the Mayor          
Approved by the Mayor          
Filed in the Office of the Recorder        
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
  City of Woodburn, Oregon 
 
 
 

65



Agenda Item 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

June 10, 2019 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Scott Derickson, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Resolution Approving a Change in Control for Woodburn 
Ambulance Service Franchise. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt the resolution. 

BACKGROUND: 

Woodburn Ambulance Service, Inc. ("Woodburn Ambulance") currently holds a 
Franchise to operate an ambulance service within the boundaries of the City of 
Woodburn (granted by Ordinance 2494). On June 3, 2019, the City received 
notice that the shareholders of Woodburn Ambulance have agreed to sell their 
shares in the corporation to Metro West Ambulance Service, Inc. ("Metro West") 
and are formally requesting approval for this change in control and assignment 
of its Franchise. Section 18 of Woodburn Ambulance's Franchise requires that the 
City approve any proposed change in interest of the franchisee or assignment 
of the franchise via resolution.  

DISCUSSION: 

In its June 3rd request letter (see attached), Woodburn Ambulance sets out 
detailed information about the structure of its change in control transaction as 
well as reasonable assurances regarding expected continuity of service for the 
Franchise moving forward. The Woodburn Ambulance entity itself will continue 
to exist, just under new ownership. Shawn Baird, the current Vice President of 
Woodburn Ambulance will also stay on after the sale as an employee in a 
general management role. Additionally, as set out in its letter, the transfer "will 
not result in any interruption of ambulance service for the Woodburn service 
area. All employees and equipment will remain with Woodburn Ambulance 
following the sale."  

In Woodburn Ambulance's request letter, information has also been provided 
regarding the business and operational experience of acquiring company 
Metro West. Metro West is one of the largest privately-owned ambulance 

66



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019 
Page 2 

service companies incorporated and operating in Oregon and is based out of 
Hillsboro. The company is owned by J.D. Fuiten, who also owns six additional 
local ambulance companies that service smaller communities in Oregon and 
along the west coast.  

Since there is no reasonable basis to deny the change in control request, staff 
recommends adoption of the resolution approving the assignment of the 
Ambulance Service Franchise.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

Attachments 
June 3, 2019 Letter from Woodburn Ambulance Services, Inc. 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



Page 1 –  COUNCIL BIL NO. 3100 
                 RESOLUTION NO. 2135 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 3100 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2135 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING OF THE SALE OF THE CONTROLLING INTEREST IN WOODBURN 
AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC. AND ASSIGNMENT OF ITS NON-EXCLUSIVE AMBULANCE 
FRANCHISE TO METRO WEST AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC.; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 WHEREAS, On September 24, 2012, the Council passed Ordinance 2494, granting 
a non-exclusive Franchise to Woodburn Ambulance Service, Inc. ("Woodburn 
Ambulance") to operate an ambulance service within the corporate boundaries of the 
City of the Woodburn; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 18 of the Franchise provides that Woodburn Ambulance shall 
not sell, assign, dispose of or transfer in any manner whatsoever any interest in this 
Franchise, nor the controlling company of Woodburn Ambulance, without prior approval 
by the City expressed by resolution of its City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Shareholders of Woodburn Ambulance desire to sell their shares in 
the corporation to Metro West Ambulance Service, Inc. ("Metro West"), subject to, among 
other conditions, any required approval of the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2019, Woodburn Ambulance sent a letter to the Council 
requesting the Council approve an assignment of its Franchise to Metro West as part of 
its change in control transaction; and 
 

WHEREAS, Metro West has provided sufficient information to confirm that it has the 
technical qualifications, insurance and bonding, and character to continue Woodburn 
Ambulance's services uninterrupted and as required by the Franchise within the 
Woodburn service area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the change in control of Woodburn Ambulance is not anticipated to 

affect its Oregon Health Authority licensing, the mutual aid agreements it has in place, 
or the Marion County service area designated for Woodburn Ambulance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City's approval of the change in control of Woodburn Ambulance 

and its consent to the assignment of the Franchise will serve the best interest of the City 
and its citizens; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
 THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby approves of- and consents to the change in 
control of Woodburn Ambulance and the assignment of the Franchise from Woodburn 
Ambulance Service, Inc. to Metro West Ambulance Service, Inc. contingent upon Metro 
West's completion of the following conditions no later than thirty (30) days after the date 
of this Resolution: 
 

75



Page 2 –  COUNCIL BIL NO. 3100 
                 RESOLUTION NO. 2135 

(A) Closing on the change in control transaction and acquiring the shares of 
Woodburn Ambulance (anticipated for June 17, 2019);  
 

(B) Marion County approving of or consenting to the transfer and assignment 
of Woodburn Ambulance's designated service area (ASA 4); and 
 

(C) Metro West filing with the City its written unconditional acceptance of the 
Franchise in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 2. Subject to the conditions listed above being met within thirty (30) days 

of the date of this Resolution, and from and after the closing date of the change in 
control of the Franchise and transfer of related assets to Metro West, Metro West shall 
become the operator of the Franchise and shall be bound by the lawful obligations and 
duties that arise on and after the closing. 

 
Section 3. The assignment of the Franchise shall not alter the terms and conditions 

of the Franchise granted by Ordinance 2494. The Franchise was duly and validly issued 
by the City. The Franchise remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof and is 
valid and enforceable in accordance with its terms and will not expire until September 
30, 2022.  
 
 
Approved as to form:      
 City Attorney  Date 
 
 
 Approved:   
  Eric Swenson, Mayor 
 
Passed by the Council   

 

Submitted to the Mayor   

Approved by the Mayor   

Filed in the Office of the Recorder   

 
ATTEST:   
  Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
  City of Woodburn, Oregon 

 
 
  

76



Page 3 –  COUNCIL BIL NO. 3100 
                 RESOLUTION NO. 2135 

EXHIBIT A 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE 
 
 WHEREAS, On September 24, 2012, the Council passed Ordinance 2494, granting 
a non-exclusive Franchise to Woodburn Ambulance Service, Inc. ("Woodburn 
Ambulance") to operate an ambulance service within the corporate boundaries of the 
City; and 
 

WHEREAS, subject to the conditions of Ordinance 2494, The City Council passed 
Resolution _______, approving of- and consenting to a change in control of Woodburn 
Ambulance and the assignment of the Franchise from Woodburn Ambulance Service, 
Inc. to Metro West Ambulance Service, Inc.; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned, Metro West Ambulance Service, Inc., the 
assignee of the Franchise hereby does for itself and its successors and assigned 
unconditionally accepts the terms, conditions, and provisions of Ordinance 2494 and 
agrees to be bound thereby and comply therewith. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Metro West Ambulance Service, Inc. has cause this 
instrument to be executed by its officer as below subscribed this    day of  
  , 2019. 
 
METRO WEST AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC. 
 
 
        
Printed Name:       
Title:         
 
 
 
Received by the City of Woodburn this    day of    , 2019. 
 
CITY OF WOODBURN 
 
 
        
Heather Pierson 
City Recorder 

77



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

                                                            June 10, 2019 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council  
 

FROM: Jamie Johnk, Economic Development Director 
  
SUBJECT: 2019 Oregon Main Street Revitalization Grant Historic City Hall - 550 N. 

First Street (Goals 1, 2, 4, 5) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Oregon Main Street 
Revitalization grant for $200,000 for the Historic City Hall Building Redevelopment 
Project and authorize the City Administrator to sign the Grant Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Built in 1914, the building served as the original Woodburn City Hall and housed city 
offices, police, jail and the firehouse from 1914 to 1977. Designed by Salem architect 
George M. Post, who also designed Salem’s Carnegie Library in 1912, this building is a 
great representation of Renaissance Palazzo architecture. The historic City Hall 
building is one of only three properties in Woodburn listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places. 
 
The historic City Hall building served the community for more than six decades as a 
public building and is a testament to the community’s history.  The property has 
changed ownership multiple times since its decommissioning, as a public building in 
1977 and has remained predominantly vacant for the last forty plus years.   
 
Anthony Young (property owner) purchased the property in foreclosure in late 2017.  
Since that time, Mr. Young has been working with the City, architects and contractors 
on a redevelopment plan that would serve the needs of the Woodburn community 
and create an adaptive reuse opportunity for the property with commercial and 
multi-family housing. 
 
To preserve and restore the historic City Hall building provides a tremendous 
opportunity for the community. Incorporating commercial businesses into the 
redevelopment will help to grow the local economy and create needed jobs and 
multi-family housing will provide alternative housing options for area residents. 
 
Working with a committed property owner such as Mr. Young ensures the 
preservation of this historic property. 

78



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
June 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The plans for the Historic City Hall Building Redevelopment Project includes adaptive 
reuse of the first and second floors as multi-residential housing with residential and 
commercial in the basement level and commercial in the former firehouse. The 
redevelopment plans reflects 10-12 residential units with studio and one-bedroom 
layouts. All units would be developed to the standards in the city development code 
but would retain structural features of the building (where possible) such as high 
ceilings, original wood floors, original windows, and use of original woodwork and 
doors. 
 
The commercial redevelopment plans reflect an opportunity for a restaurant in the 
former firehouse and possibly a portion of the basement, however additional 
commercial uses would be considered for the redevelopment and reuse of the 
building. The firehouse interior would retain the high ceilings and characteristics of its 
former use. The jail cells remain in the basement and could be an interesting attribute 
to a commercial business. 
 
The City will enter into an agreement with the property owner of the historic building 
to ensure commitment and compliance to the terms and conditions of the Oregon 
Main Street grant award. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Funding sources for the Historic City Hall Redevelopment Project include as follows: 

• Oregon Main Street Revitalization Funds $200,000 (committed) 
 
• Property Owner Funds $535,300 (secured) 

Personal $ 50,000 
Financing/Investor $485,300 
 

• Woodburn Urban Renewal Grant Funds $100,000 (request pending) 
2019 FY $ 50,000 
2020 FY $ 50,000 

 
Total Project Funding Sources $835,300 

 

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97


	Library Board Appointments June 10, 2019
	Council Meeting Minutes May 13, 2019
	JB Liquidators (Wheeler Dealer) 06102019
	Crime stats
	Arrests by Offenses_04.2019
	Criminal Offenses_04.2019
	Ordinance Violations_04.2019

	Building Activity - May, 2019
	LA 2019-01
	City Council memo 6-10-19 - Ord ck
	LA 2019-01 PC Staff Report final w attachments
	Staff report LA 2019-01 PC
	Executive Summary
	Discussion
	Recommendation
	Actions
	Attachment List

	101 - Strikeout langauge LA 2019-01
	102 - Analysis and Findings
	Legislative Amendment Provisions
	Comprehensive Plan Policies, OAR’s & Statewide Planning Goals

	103 - Resolution 2131 2019-04-08
	104 - Examples of other city regs
	MF regs in commercial zones

	105 - Zoning Map

	LA 2019-01 Written Testimony
	Zoning Map

	Zoning Map
	Supplemental Budget
	Staff Report Budget Resolution 06-10-19 Museum Endownment Fund
	June 10, 2019

	Resolution - Supplemental Budget - June 10 2019

	FY 2019 -20 Budget SR & RES
	City Staff Report for Budget Hearing 06-10-2019
	City Resolution for Woodburn FY 2019-20 Budget 06-10-2019

	State Revenue Sharing
	City Staff Report for State Revenue Sharing 06-10-2019
	City Resolution for State Revenue Sharing 06-10-2019

	Ambulance Franchise
	6-4-19Ambulance Transfer Staff Report
	Woodburn City Letter Signed
	Metro West Added Services

	Grant
	Staff Report - 2019 OR Main Street Revitalization Grant - Historic City Hall Redevelopment (002)
	FROM: Jamie Johnk, Economic Development Director
	UBACKGROUNDU:
	UDISCUSSIONU:
	UFINANCIAL IMPACTU:

	OMS Revitalization Grant Contract




